Torrey Pines Community Planning Board www.torreypinescommunity.org

BOARD MEMBERS: Dennis Ridz, Chair; Dee Rich, Vice Chair; Patti Ashton, Treasurer; Secretary Elizabeth Shopes; Jake Mumma; Susan Lyon; Troy Van Horst; Mike Hastings; Samson Gavranian (absent); Brad Remy; Sheryl Adams, Barb Cerny.

Torrey Pines Committee Planning Board –November 14, 2019 minutes

Call to order at 7:01 PM

Police report: Officer John Briggs spoke about local police activity. Treasurer gave bank account status.

INFORMATION ITEMS

- 1. Chair reported Project #624232 at 13796 Durango was considering a different driveway alignment.
- 2. Chair announced that both Wayne Cox and Barbara Cerny were leaving the Board, creating two vacancies for the March 2020 election.
- 3. Chair informed the Board that Project Review Committee issued a draft statement to DSD about Peace Crowell Law office project #625754.

ACTION ITEMS:

- 1. Elizabeth Shopes appointed interim Secretary until March, 2020. Unanimous vote
- 2. Jake Mumma unanimously elected to Project Review Committee as replacement for Mr. Cox.
- 3. Board supported a draft memo to Mr. Remy to use in addressing various issues at the CPC on some issues presented by the City Taskforce on Community Planning Group Reform.
- 4. Traffic Light Signal evaluations at Mercado/Del Mar Height Rd. Council President Pro Tem Bry had requested that the TPCPB hold a public forum to discuss the pros and cons related to requesting a 'on-Demand Traffic Light' be installed at Mercado Drive. About 90 minutes was provided to 24 speakers against the light installation and 23 in favor. Speakers were allowed 2 minutes each but citizens who filled out speaker slips could donate their two minutes to a selected individual. Pro and Con speakers alternated speaking, as pulled from the top of each pile.

Speakers For the Traffic Light: Bob Shopes, Dr. Najeeb Khan, Nan Cirqui, Victoria DiCicco, Paul Friedman, Diana Schaeffler, Dr. Cathy Rogowski, Jeff Harasha, Rosanna Alvarado-Martin, Arzo Nasini, Janet and Jeff Meredith, Fred Schramm, Julie Sundt, Katrina Heffinger (representing the Del Mar Hills elementary school PTA), Marybeth Norgren and Gerald T Cameron.

Speakers Against the traffic light were: Michele Kipnis (spoke for herself and also for Vafa Mogharbi who was unable to make the meeting), Rob Fasber, Bill Leonard, Kevin Cahill, Dr. Scott Gillin, Nancy Swanberg, Dr. David Redfield, Diane Jacobs,

Torrey Pines Community Planning Board www.torreypinescommunity.org

Greg Jabin, Julie Rucker, Mary Yip and Tony Sanchez. (There was also a speaker, Bob with no last name on his slip.)

Summary of concerns expressed by the community members supporting the light.

Increased traffic and speed on Del Mar Heights Road make it unsafe to cross without a traffic light and crosswalk (with nearby One Paseo residences and offices not yet fully open). Witnessed near-misses of pedestrians getting hit by cars was mentioned. There was concern expressed for pedestrian injuries and fatalities. Inability of vehicles to access DMH Rd, particularly from the southwest area of Del Mar Heights which has no traffic signal, noting that neither Crest nor Mango are accessible to this area as alternate routes. The increased traffic due to remodeled, fully occupied Beachside mall popularity (on Mango, north of DMH) has led to vehicles on the north side using other streets to access DMH Rd, to avoid the backed-up cars on SB Mango at the light at DMH Rd. The pro group believes that people would be safer crossing in a crosswalk with a traffic light. Many confessions of jay walking to cross DMH Rd. further west of the current lights, some with dogs and children. A longtime resident said that the Mango Light was only put in after a fatality.

Summary of concerns expressed by the community members against the light.

Statements were made by engineers who live in the neighborhood that traffic lights and crosswalks do not make pedestrians safer. Several concerns that more people would cross DMH assuming it to be safe to do so if there was a traffic light and a crosswalk, while concern that the setting sun would blind drivers and cause them to not even notice the traffic light and the intersection would make the street more dangerous to pedestrians legally crossing in walk. They felt there might also be more rear-end collisions for the same reason. The traffic light may cause more traffic backing up on Mercado and on DMH resulting in more car exhaust outside residents' houses and more traffic on their streets as people learn to use Mercado as a preferred, lighted, exit from the neighborhood. Also expressed was the opposite concern that avoidance of the traffic light at Mercado, might cause increased use of other neighborhood surface streets. Concern was expressed that drivers would accelerate to beat the lights and even run the light.

Overall summary of shared concerns and history

More study and calming measures were advocated by both groups. Some wanted a bridge or rotary which were on the Board's original CIP list. The Board was reminded of many failed efforts that included a rejected landscaped median due to MAD Assessments, and that the light project is what is being offered.

Torrey Pines Community Planning Board www.torreypinescommunity.org

At the end of the time available for speakers, Ms. Rich presented a Motion concerning the Traffic installation and was seconded by Chair Ridz. Chair Ridz asked if the TPCPB wanted the Motion re-read and the Board stated No and Chair Ridz called for a vote on the Motion which follows:

To Council President Pro Tem Barbara Bry Re: Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and CIP Budget Revisions

The Torrey Pines Community Planning Board endorses your criteria, as established in your April 9, 2019 Memorandum to Mayor Faulconer, for pedestrian safety measures along Del Mar Heights Road at Mercado Drive that provides for a designated pedestrian crossing to improve pedestrian safety, especially for students who must cross Del Mar Heights Road. The Torrey Pines community is most concerned with the safety needs of children who attend both Del Mar Heights Elementary and Del Mar Hill Elementary, and the lack of safety measures for pedestrian along Del Mar Heights Road.

We encourage you, as Council President Pro Tem, to move forward with establishing a CIP funding account/source for a traffic signal at Mercado Drive and Del Mar Heights Road. Your City Council sponsorship and funding will allow the Traffic Engineering Department to initiate a preliminary engineering design and review possible safety protocols for a traffic signal at Mercado Drive and Del Mar Heights Road. Traffic Engineering staff estimates cost to be around \$400,000.

The City Traffic Engineer has said the chosen location for a traffic signal at Mercado/Del Mar Heights Road will have a marked crosswalk and pedestrian control features if the traffic signal is installed.

Motion Approved and forwarded to Council President Pro Tem Barbara Bry Torrey Pines Community Planning Board Approved the above Motion 8-2-1.

In Favor: Brad Remy, Sheryl Adams, Dennis Ridz, Dee Rich, Elizabeth Shopes, Susan

Lyon, Troy Van Horst, Barb Cerny Against: Patti Ashton, Jake Mumma

Abstain: Mike Hastings (votes only on lagoon issues)

Meeting adjourned at 9:10 PM

Minutes submitted by Susan Lyon, Secretary

Attendeme Name email Jim Bey Ster Detsorah Curri James beystere yehoo.com del martiana a gmailicem Ann GARDNER grandrine 12 @ gnoil, com ADOM GOVANTHAR SPAMFURUL Q GRAPHLACERS. Jeff Harasha Nan Crique ncrique @ yahoo. com Alan Azimi alana Zimi 246 @gmail. for Azimis Conpanion Unit MOHSEN SAYAR DANY ALLEE Sarah Davis esavigliano @ INTERNATIONAL-BYNSMICS, COM EDWARD SAVIGLIANO gjabin@padell.net GREG JABIN Bernic Turgeon City Planting byturgeon W Saudiewogu Alex Kwoka alexandra Kubrategmail. com Jim Smith dana Schefflor 1 @ gmeil. Diana Scheffler Jan & Doug McEachens

Regin Turyson Chy Donney betalgord Swelligge FROM BOULT NEED Alterial although the The Syrran THE PROPERTY OF STREET YORK Total Transfer CTAMBELLO & PARACASONS RAM RESEARCHERE 500 800 560 4 100 6 4 9 5 1000 Bankan and professional TO THE PROPERTY COLOR Grantshay Steen By Yelles Com 1000 Manaca The first of the state of the s

P.15 add into minutes of TPCRB from 1/14/2 meeting

traffic light. Since July 2019; I've working with a group of intelligent; analytical; caring and compassionate neighbors who have come together to oppose a traffic signal on DMHR and Mercado Dr. As some of you know; we ALL live on Mercado Dr. some people have called us NIMBYies as to belittle our motivation. I want to be very clear- our focus has been on trying to communicate with San Diego City Traffic Engineer Joe Jimenez; San Diego City council member Barbara Bry; The TPCPB; the San Diego Police Dept and our DMH neighbors to develop; support and build on state of the art traffic calming and slowing techniques to improve the safety of all neighbors and visitors who travel on DMHR. My focus has always been to work as a community to improve the safety of the cars; bikes; and pedestrians who use this road to access homes; schools; businesses; shops; the beach and the track. I want to thank TPCPB for laying the groundwork for starting this current dialog that must continue to

improve safety for kids; cars; neighbors; business;

Del Mar Heights/ Mercado Street Light Proposal Petition to Keep our Neighborhood Safe

We, the undersigned registered voters of The City of San Diego, California, hereby present this petition to the City Council of The City of San Diego, California, and ask that the City of San Diego do NOT install a street light or crosswalk on Del Mar Heights Road and Mercado. The light is unsafe and will risk our children's lives, as studies have shown that the majority of pedestrian collisions occur in signalized intersections. The signal would create traffic congestion on Del Mar Heights Road, and displace traffic into residential streets. This will be unsafe for the children living in the neighborhood. The new traffic from One Paseo was not taken into consideration when the city reviewed the placement of a streetlight.

NAME	SIGNATURE	ADDRESS	DATE

schools and all who travel on DMHR. This is our community. Let's all work together and stop name calling; shaming; pulling the mics out of neighbors hands. Let's continue this dialog and work together with the schools; parents; TPCPB; our City of San Diego civil servants; neighbors and residents.

Dr. Scott Gillin has compiled and analyzed comprehensive history of del mar heights road traffic studies; regional plans; safety reports from 2004 to the present. He also developed an on line petition for our neighbors to vote no on a traffic signal on DMHR and Mercado Dr. We have collected 181 online signatures and 43 signatures walking door to door on Mercado Dr and Recuerdo Dr.

Doctors Tony Sanchez and Vafa Mogharabi; our transportation and civil engineers have also analyzed the traffic data and city plans from 2004 to the present. They utilize civil; municipal; state and federal codes and laws that govern traffic engineering. Janet Matula has made multiple calls

Del Mar Heights/ Mercado Street Light Proposal Petition to Keep our Neighborhood Safe

We, the undersigned registered voters of The City of San Diego, California, hereby present this petition to the City Council of The City of San Diego, California, and ask that the City of San Diego do NOT install a street light or crosswalk on Del Mar Heights Road and Mercado. The light is unsafe and will risk our children's lives, as studies have shown that the majority of pedestrian collisions occur in signalized intersections. The signal would create traffic congestion on Del Mar Heights Road, and displace traffic into residential streets. This will be unsafe for the children living in the neighborhood. The new traffic from One Paseo was not taken into consideration when the city reviewed the placement of a streetlight.

NAME	SIGNATURE	ADDRESS	DATI	<u>E</u>
			1	
				:
			:	
			:	
•				
			1	
				:
			e e e	

to Barbara Bry's office describing how Ms. Bry's involvement in this issue has torn our community apart. I'm not a practicing civil and traffic engineer and neither the TPCPB; Ms. Bry; Mayor Falkoner; employees and parents of our local schools.

₹ - ₹

I want to thank TPCPB for laying the groundwork for starting this current dialog that must continue to improve safety for kids; cars; neighbors; business; schools and all who travel on DMHR. This is our community. Let's all work together and stop name calling; shaming; not answering emails or calls; let's stop pulling the mics out of neighbor's hands who oppose your position on traffic and safety.

I'm here to encourage everyone in our community to listen to each other; take a tutorial lesson from Tony and Vafa on best practices on improving safety for all who use DMHR. I want to work to slow the traffic on DMHR utilizing police presence to patrol and ticket speeders; cell phone users and distracted drivers. I want to work together to make DMHR slower and improve the safety of all who use this

Del Mar Heights/ Mercado Street Light Proposal Petition to Keep our Neighborhood Safe

We, the undersigned registered voters of The City of San Diego, California, hereby present this petition to the City Council of The City of San Diego, California, and ask that the City of San Diego do NOT install a street light or crosswalk on Del Mar Heights Road and Mercado. The light is unsafe and will risk our children's lives, as studies have shown that the majority of pedestrian collisions occur in signalized intersections. The signal would create traffic congestion on Del Mar Heights Road, and displace traffic into residential streets. This will be unsafe for the children living in the neighborhood. The new traffic from One Paseo was not taken into consideration when the city reviewed the placement of a streetlight.

NAME	SIGNATURE	ADDRESS		DATE
				· ·
			·	
		1 4		
	- 1			
	:	:		-

road. Let's continue this dialog and work together with the schools; parents; TPCPB; our City of San Diego civil servants; neighbors and residents.

Thank you.

Del Mar Heights/ Mercado Street Light Proposal Petition to Keep our Neighborhood Safe

We, the undersigned registered voters of The City of San Diego, California, hereby present this petition to the City Council of The City of San Diego, California, and ask that the City of San Diego do NOT install a street light or crosswalk on Del Mar Heights Road and Mercado. The light is unsafe and will risk our children's lives, as studies have shown that the majority of pedestrian collisions occur in signalized intersections. The signal would create traffic congestion on Del Mar Heights Road, and displace traffic into residential streets. This will be unsafe for the children living in the neighborhood. The new traffic from One Paseo was not taken into consideration when the city reviewed the placement of a streetlight.

NAME	SIGNATURE	ADDRESS		DATE
and the same that the same than a same tha				
				like.
•				
			- 457	
		1		
		. 1		
		181		
		29	4	
			1 A	
		122	H	

Petition for No Stoplight on Del Mar Heights Road and Mercado Drive

Petition summary and background	A traffic signal at this location will be unsafe, risk the lives of children, cause accidents, create traffic congestion on Del Mar Heights Road, and displace traffic onto residential streets making it unsafe for children living in the neighborhood.
Action petitioned for	We, the undersigned, are concerned citizens who urge our leaders to not install a traffic signal at Del Mar Heights Road and Mercado Drive. We want traffic calming measures along Del Mar Heights Road, improvement of sidewalks and intersection crossings for the elementary schools, and improvement to the intersection of Del Mar Heights Road and Mango Drive.

Printed Name	Signature	Address	Comment	Date
Elizabeil Prag	Elster Reag	2455 ELAmigo Rd 92014		10/20/19
PAM KUBIAK	Canela O Kubiak	2475 EZ Amigo Rd 92014		10/20/9
Cliff RUBIAK	Cllk	11	5.57	10/20/17
Morton Printz	Maks	2480 El Amy Rb		10/20/19
JAMA PRINTY	My	2480 EL A7160 BD		10/20/19
MARICON JAVIM	Maris	14109 BATTAMA COVE	-	10/20/19
Petar Crosby	Oute least	14021 BORUMA D	-	10/20/19
Cathy Croth	Carty Carly	14021 Bog with Dogwie		10/20/9
Ruchel Alsen	Ralno	14048 Bognita DI-	Still need safety solution.	10/20/9
Rick Schwering	H. Solwering	14058 Recverdo DR.		10/20/19
Cy Talbot	En Trut	2511 LOZANA RD.		10/20/19

Feither for No Stophyth on Dal Wer Heights Road and Mercedo Drive

an Del Mari	නේ නිර්දා අතුර මේ නිර්දා සහ පත්ව යන අතුරුවන් මෙන් සංවර්ධ විද්යා සහ අතුරුව පත්වර්ධ සහ සහ සහ සහ සහ සහ	i ose uz najta, dek tir e kven tri onficion, our ro sedo trivido mi skojugaje koncini grina k	A badib signs at the locator w the circ foed, end bis, see that	สิสติกและ การคุณที่สามารถเล่า สาราคาสุดเล่า
pase	ेरीहरू क्षणीं के विकास प्रात्मा है। जिस्सी होरीन	read o ilteak kipp ago gor la <mark>nges lo</mark> noi 2014 - alm ng melleuro s nkj eg li el Mar He amerak y solobla, pod <mark>ingero</mark> vernant io th	er a tva, jode i Drive. We we rep	es a verifies, pair
		er en	.WeG	kan kanada da kanada Kanada kanada da kan
to the state of	Francisco de la compansión de la compans	- Econolis		omedicida
		de and a		
	7"			<u></u>
	•			
				r ion i Aire - green A
		هٔ طد درگذار پیشار جاید پیشترین و کی		

Petition for No Stoplight on Del Mar Heights Road and Mercado Drive

Petition summary and background	A traffic signal at this location will be unsafe, risk the lives of children, cause accidents, create traffic congestion on Del Mar Heights Road, and displace traffic onto residential streets making it unsafe for children living in the neighborhood.
Action petitioned for	We, the undersigned, are concerned citizens who urge our leaders to not install a traffic signal at Del Mar Heights Road and Mercado Drive. We want traffic calming measures along Del Mar Heights Road, improvement of sidewalks and intersection crossings for the elementary schools, and improvement to the intersection of Del Mar Heights Road and Mango Drive.

Printed Name	Signature	Address	Comment	Date
Richard GREEN	And Cuff	13863 Leverdo	NOLIGHT	10/21/19
JUNA GREEN	! feet Inc	13863 Recyclo	11	10/21/19
JON HORNING	Dam	13873 NECUERDO)1	12/2/13
Mark Naylor	MM ME	13834 Recueros	No LIGHT	10-21-19
Lori Naylor	Mud Hird	13834 Recuerdo Dr.	No Light	10/21/19
of sudded	Elysberh Doly	14014 Bogedals	No light	10/21/19
Dubbie Winer	Jaha Weres	14049 Boguita	Do lynd	10/2/19
Paul Symcok	Paul Symph	14049 Baguita	No light	10/2/10
MelissaMyhum	manyOunke	13943 Recuerdo Dr	No light	10/21/19
Minam Neigils	Minin Blegas	13964 Recuerdo Drive	No light - will increase	
Sos & Kell	1/ 7/	13973 Recyolofo	NO GAC	10/21/9

	17, 4		類以外		
	1.0				
9.3					
		Х			
		, A			
				A. W	
				Ph H	
			1	1 1 2 1	
	75.0				
			£ 1.1		
		- 4			
				- 4	
		3	u u u		
		+			
			X.		
	. 1				

Petition for No Stoplight on Del Mar Heights Road and Mercado Drive

Petition summary and background	A traffic signal at this location will be unsafe, risk the lives of children, cause accidents, create traffic congestion on Del Mar Heights Road, and displace traffic onto residential streets making it unsafe for children living in the neighborhood.
Action petitioned for	We, the undersigned, are concerned citizens who urge our leaders to not install a traffic signal at Del Mar Heights Road and Mercado Drive. We want traffic calming measures along Del Mar Heights Road, improvement of sidewalks and intersection crossings for the elementary schools, and improvement to the intersection of Del Mar Heights Road and Mango Drive.

Printed Name	Signature	Address	Comment	Date
Michael Anello	Michael Coulls	13983 Recuerdo Dr		10/2/19
Barbara Woodwar	Burley Woodware	13997 Recuerdo Dr		10/3/19
Chet Woodward	Od Coodwood	13997 Recuerto De		10/2/19
Kerry Zisock	Mysode	Holle Cecuerdo Dr.		10/2/19
Petel Carley	Pett VIII	13850 Mango Dr		10/21/19
Kay la Butsku	Los Person	13850 Margo 17		13/2/19
Karen Zisook	K Zireh	14033 Mercodo Dr		10/21/19
Steven HOlsher	Alan	13163 Porto Fin DR 92014		ulula
			-	

(2)

Herci Weissban

November 11, 2019

Dear Torrey Pines Planning Board,

This letter is in regards to the installation of a signal light at Mercado Drive and Del Mar Heights Road. We are local Pediatricians, work locally, have lived in the Del Mar Heights community for over 15 years, and are opposed to the light. A light would be dangerous for children.

Currently, children do not cross Del Mar Heights Road at the top of the hill. Placing children in the middle of that road, would only increase the chances of them being hit. Different developmental stages of children make them more vulnerable to being hit by a fast car, a distracted driver, a driver running a slight yellow, or a child being hit at the curb/corner.

There has not been any safety studies done on the possibility of a light at this location. There has not been any studies on the safety of children in that intersection crossing, on cars running yellow lights to make it to school on time, or children in side streets that would be affected by cars racing through the intersection.

There are numerous studies in the literature that demonstrate that a signal light and crosswalk decrease safety.

We feel that a light at Mercado and Del Mar Heights would not increase safety for children and we recommend against it.

Auganne Mall Mo

Thank you,

Shakha Gillin, M.D. 13990 Mercado Drive

Suzanne Mills, M.D. 2470 Malibu Way

pls entered into records & include in the minutes of your meeting on 11/14/19

Joe Jimenez, P.E. Senior Traffic Engineer City of San Diego Transportation & Storm Water Department

(wo our Dear Mr. Jimenez,

I am writing to you in regards to the proposed signal at the intersection of Mercado and Del Mar Heights Road.

I feel an introduction is necessary to establish my credentials. My name is Vafa Mogharabi, a 30 year resident of this community. I have a Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering and am a licensed registered engineer in the State of California (Board of Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors). I have over 36 years of experience in designing and managing various transportation systems for the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) in district 11, San Diego. I have supervised and managed a staff of engineers in the Division of Design, producing engineering drawings and contract legal documents for various types of roadway projects.

The Office of Barbara Bry has informed the community that the funding is available and the decision to install the signal is up to the Torrey Pines Community Planning Board (TPCPB). This is unacceptable because none of the members of TPCPB are subject matter experts. This is a safety issue and the final determination and the best solution should be decided by experts in the field based on solid data, using engineering judgment and best standards and practices.

Simply stated, is this intersection unsafe? The answer needs to be determined by experts, backed by engineering study and data such as a collision diagram showing crash experience by type, location, direction of movement, severity, weather, time of day, date, and day of week for at least 1 year and other data based on recommendations of California Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD).

Installation of this signal would increase city's legal exposure and potential legal liability in the event of an accident and the engineer of record could be required to defend his or her decision in a deposition or court hearing.

The burden of this safety issue should not be placed on the shoulders of an advisory group or the members of the community. The community is asking for a solution to improve traffic flow at Del Mar Heights and deserves an honest and complete review and an engineering study by professionals and subject matter experts. TPCPB is an advisory board and has no expertise to make a recommendation for installation of a traffic safety device.

alekt kolonia over perketet ett i stollaktion litter til ett ett i fillet ett i kolonia. Som ett ett i som ett ett i stollaktioner ett ett i stollaktioner ett i stollaktioner ett ett ett ett ett ett · Bartista Angle () · Magaille () the configuration that the property of the contract of the con · 通常 · 通过企業 · 2000 · 18 · 1860 en de Maria de Maria Romanda de Santa de Arra Arra de Maria de Maria Romanda de Arra Arra de Arra d Latte for the Latte of the American section is a second control of the control of of History process which are taken to the taken to be a first the same of the taken to be a first to be a first o e ka ku sa naja e grabenja i jedina i e ingliki unjarajena ana ingliki se e Mjara ak Giskopaja pri sa jaran ku sa praka ka taka ka najarajena ka jedina. al de la companya de la co La companya de la companya del companya del companya de la companya del la companya de la companya del la companya de la companya de la companya del la companya de la companya del la companya del la companya del la compa rang settik di Ligati di Light, di Light gapir ngasi jetak i ki The control of the second (1) [1] 南海海村市南山市区 Franklinger

The fact that the city is willing to spend 400,000 dollars to install a signal at a location which has had no reported accidents and practically no pedestrian crossings using a single warrant out of 9 (one hour peak traffic), raises the question of how this location has made it to the top of the list.

As you know, a traffic signal is the most restrictive form of intersection control and one of the most expensive. As such, municipalities must ensure that it is the safest solution and the best option, as well as the best location before spending tax payers' money.

As per California MUTCD CHAPTER 4C.
Section 4C.01 Studies and Factors for Justifying Traffic Control Signals

The satisfaction of a traffic signal warrant or warrants shall not in itself require the installation of a traffic control signal.

A traffic control signal should not be installed unless an engineering study indicates that installing a traffic control signal will improve the overall safety and/or operation of the intersection.

(If available I would be interested in reviewing this study)

Typically a traffic signal is not recommended when it only meets peak hour warrants. Best traffic engineering practices recommend a 4-hr or 8-hr warrant analysis to be met prior to recommending the installation of the traffic signal. In this particular case, Del Mar Heights road is signalized at Mango drive and Crest, the other intersections have minor street controls which is proper form of traffic control. Installing a signal at this location will not function well for the following reasons:

- It can increase delay for all traffic movements.
- It can lead to an increase in traffic violations at the intersection.
- It can increase the frequency of traffic crashes at the intersection (primarily rear-end crashes).
- It can increase pollution and noise levels for residents adjacent to the intersection.
- It can increase the volume of traffic through residential areas.
- It can cause road users to increase the use of alternative routes to avoid the signal.
 Often, these alternative routes travel through neighborhoods or other less adequate roads. Importantly, most streets including Mercado north of Del Mar Heights have no continuous sidewalk.

If the Peak Hour Warrant is the only warrant met, as in this case, and a traffic control signal is justified by an engineering study, it is typically recommended that the traffic control signal be operated in the flashing mode during the hours that the volume criteria of this warrant are not met. In addition, the traffic control signal should be traffic-actuated. This is going to add more confusion and disrespect for this type of traffic control.

Del Mar Heights road is a busy, four-lane major road central to the City of Del Mar used by both locals and tourists unfamiliar with the road's possible inherent dangers which I

Not spouretime

believe would be exacerbated by this stoplight. A number of drivers are tourists or from other communities accessing restaurants, parks and beaches. Additionally, a number of commuters use Del Mar Heights road as a bypass during congestion on I-5. Higher volumes of traffic during horse race events and Del Mar Fair should also be considered.

Based on design standards and practices, the vertical curve just east of this location creates a blind spot for vehicles traveling westbound. These vehicles are accelerating as they approach the grade reaching the crest of the vertical curve at a high speeds, carrying the speed down the hill. Speeding is a major concern and the city has installed a radar controlled speed warning sign at this exact location. Drivers routinely exceed posted speed limit. A vehicle traveling at 48 MPH require approximately 161 feet to come to a complete stop in an emergency. In my opinion installation of a traffic signal following this blind vertical curve and the resulting sight-distance restriction will increase the possibility of rear end collisions (Queue length on stop-controlled approach) and cross traffic accidents. Additionally, pedestrians feeling safe walking at this signalized intersection could be at risk by drivers running the red light due to lack of visibility at high speeds.

It is my professional opinion that installation of a traffic signal at Mercado would not make this intersection any safer, but would actually create a more dangerous situation for the traveling public and the community.

It is important to mention that no other alternatives have been proposed other than installation of a signal. I believe there are other safer, less costly and less restrictive alternatives available that should be studied and considered.

I would like to have the opportunity to discuss these ideas with you.

As a public servant for over 36 years I have always made it a priority to ensure my decisions were based on what is best for the traveling public and to design the safest and most economical facility possible based on sound engineering judgment, not allowing politics to dictate the outcome. I urge the city to do the same. This signal has created division within the community and needs to be studied in more detail and a resolution which would be acceptable by the community should be the top priority without rushing it through.

I am available to meet at your earliest convenience to discuss this urgent matter.

Since the Office of Barbara Bry has moved the vote of the TPCPB from November to early October it is crucial to discuss this urgent matter as early as possible.

I also request that this email be placed in the project files for future reference.

I also urge Councilmember Barbara Bry to delay any decision to allow adequate time for city engineers to further evaluate the safety issues and to consider other options and alternatives without external pressure. This would better serve the entire community as this is an important safety and quality of life concern.

Looking forward to our meeting.

Sincerely,

Vafa Mogharabi, P.E. Tel: 858-353-7494 Vafa550@yahoo.com submitted by Paul Friedman

In response to the N0 petition created by those living on Mercado Dr. just north of Del Mar Heights Road I created a website, delmarheights.org, and survey for those in favor of increasing the safety of Del Mar Heights Road for students, pedestrians and vehicular traffic by the construction of the traffic light at Mercado. I jump started the process by an email to my south Mango Drive neighbors. So I expected the results to be weighted by "southerners" they were not it proved to be a virtual even split, 47% north to 53% south of the 129 respondents. Other questions on the survey included the street name, 34 different, Zip code 99% lived in 92014, 85% provided name and email address a testament to registering their belief in the light. Vicky's independent in person survey gathered 90 signatures in favor of the light for a total of 219.